
The Auditor, or any other officer, including the Mayor, is hereby authorized and directed (a) to 
make or effect any election, selection, designation, choice, consent, approval or waiver on behalf of the City 
with respect to the Bonds as permitted or required to be made or given under the federal income tax laws, 
for the purpose of assuring, enhancing or protecting favorable tax treatment or the status of the Bonds or 
interest thereon or assisting compliance with requirements for that purpose, reducing the burden or expense 
of such compliance, reducing any rebate amount or any payment of penalties, or making any payments of 
special amounts in lieu of making computations to determine, or paying, any excess earnings as rebate, or 
obviating those amounts or payments, as determined by the Auditor, which action shall be in writing and 
signed by the Auditor, or any other officer, including the Mayor, on behalf of the City; (b) to take any and 
all actions, make or obtain calculations, and make or give reports, covenants and certifications of and on 
behalf of the City, as may be appropriate to assure the exclusion of interest from gross income and the 
intended tax status of the Bonds; and (c) to give an appropriate certificate on behalf of the City, for 
inclusion in the transcript of proceedings, setting forth the facts, estimates and circumstances, and 
reasonable expectations of the City pertaining to Section 148 and the Regulations, and the representations, 
warranties and covenants of the City regarding compliance by the City with Sections 141 through ISO of the 
Code and the Regulations. 

The Auditor shall keep and maintain adequate records pertaining to investment of all proceeds of 
the Bonds sufficient to permit, to the maximum extent possible and presently foreseeable, the City to 
comply with any federal law or regulation now or hereafter having applicability to the Bonds which limits 
the amount of bond proceeds which may be invested on an unrestricted yield or requires the City to rebate 
arbitrage profits to the United States Department of the Treasury. The Auditor is hereby authorized and 
directed to file such reports with, and rebate arbitrage profits to, the United States Department of the 
Treasury, to the extent that any federal law or regulation having applicability to the Bonds requires any such 
reports or rebates. 

Section 14. Municipal Bond Insurance. The Auditor, or any other officer, including the 
Mayor, is authorized to make appropriate arrangements, if such officer deems it in the best interest of the 
City, for the issuance of a municipal bond insurance policy with respect to all or any portion of the 
Bonds, including executing and delivering a commitment therefor and certificates and other documents in 
connection therewith. All additional provisions required to be authorized by this Council for the 
issuance of a municipal bond insurance policy shall be contained in the Certificate of Fiscal Officer or in 
the transcript of proceedings described herein. 

Section 15. Official Statement. The distribution of an Official Statement of the City, in 
preliminary and final form, relating to the original issuance of the Bonds is hereby authorized, if the 
Auditor determines that it is necessary or advisable to prepare and distribute an Official Statement in 
connection with the issuance of the Bonds. If the Auditor so determines, then the Auditor or any other 
officer of the City, including the Mayor, are hereby authorized and directed to negotiate, prepare and 
execute, on behalf of the City and in their official capacity, the Official Statement and any supplements 
thereto as so executed in connection with the original issuance of the Bonds, and they are authorized and 
directed to advise the Original Purchaser in writing regarding limitations on the use of the Official 
Statement and any supplements thereto for purposes of marketing or reoffering the Bonds as they deem 
necessary or appropriate to protect the interests of the City. The Auditor and any other officer of the 
City, including the Mayor, are each authorized to execute and deliver, on behalf of the City and in their 
official capacities, such certificates in connection with the accuracy of the Official Statement, in either 
preliminary or final form, and any supplements thereto as may, in their judgment, be necessary or 

appropriate. 

I 0714266v\ 9 



Section 16. Obtaining of Rating for the Bonds. The obtaining or updating of a rating or ratings 
on the Bonds and the City is hereby authorized if the Auditor determines that it is necessary or advisable in 
connection with the original issuance of the Bonds. If the Auditor so determines, then the Auditor and any 
other officer of the City are hereby authorized and directed to take all steps necessary to obtain such rating 
or ratings. 

Section 17. Transcript of Proceedings; Execution of Additional Documents. The officer having 
charge of the minutes of the Council and any other officers of the City, or any of them individually, are 
hereby authorized and directed to prepare and certify a true transcript of proceedings pertaining to the 
Bonds and to furnish a copy of such transcript to the Original Purchaser. Such transcript shall include 
certified copies of all proceedings and records of the Council relating to the power and authority of the City 
to issue the Bonds and certificates as to matters within their knowledge or as shown by the books and 
records under their custody and control, including but not limited to; (i) a general certificate of the City 
Clerk and the Law Director; and (ii) a no-litigation certificate of the Mayor, the Auditor, and the Law 
Director. Such certified copies and certificates shall be deemed representations of the City as to the facts 
stated therein. 

The Auditor and any other officer of the City, including the Mayor, is hereby authorized and 
directed to take such action (including, but not limited to, hiring professionals or consultants as may be 
needed to facilitate the issuance of the Bonds) and to execute and deliver, on behalf of the City, such 
additional instruments, agreements, certificates, and other documents as may be in their discretion necessary 
or appropriate in order to carry out the intent of this Ordinance. Such documents shall be in the form not 
substantially inconsistent with the terms of this Ordinance, as they in their discretion shall deem necessary 
or appropriate. 

Section 18. Appointment of Municipal Advisor. Ross, Sinclaire & Associates, LLC is hereby 
appointed to serve as municipal advisor to the City for the Bonds. The Mayor, Auditor, City Clerk, or any 
other officer of the City is hereby authorized to enter into any agreements necessary to memorialize this 
relationship. The fees to be paid to such firm shall be subject to review and approval of the Auditor, shall 
not exceed the fees customarily charged for such services, and shall be paid upon closing of the fmancing 
from the proceeds of the Bonds or as otherwise determined by the Auditor. 

Section 19. Appointment of Bond Counsel. The law firm of Bricker & Eckler LLP is hereby 
appointed to serve as Bond Counsel with respect to this fmancing. 

Section 20. Satisfaction of Conditions for Bond Issuance. It is hereby found and determined 
that all acts, conditions and things necessary to be done precedent to and in the issuing of the Bonds in order 
to make them legal , valid and binding obligations of the City have happened, been done and been performed 
in regular and due form as required by law; that the full faith, credit and revenue of the City are hereby 
irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of the principal and interest thereof at maturity; and that no 
limitation of indebtedness or taxation, either statutory or constitutional, has been exceeded in issuing the 
Bonds. 

Section 21 . Compliance with Open Meeting Requirements. It is hereby found and determined 
that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were taken in 
an open meeting of this Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that 
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal 
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. . 

107 14266v l 10 



Section 22. Filing of Bond Ordinance. The City Clerk is hereby directed to forward a certified 
copy of this Ordinance to the Auditor ofMuskingum County, Ohio. 

Section 23. Emergency Measure. This Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency 
measure necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health, safety and welfare of the City and its 
inhabitants, and for the further reason that the Outstanding Notes heretofore issued are about to mature and 
it is necessary to make immediate provision for their repayment in order to preserve the credit of the City; 
wherefore this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and immediately after its adoption. 

Passed: _________ " 2016 

Attest: 
City Clerk President of Council 

Approved: ___ ____ , 2016 

Mayor 

Approved as to form: 

~ 

1071 4266v 1 1 1 



CERTIFICATE 

The undersigned City Clerk hereby certifies that the foregoing is a true copy of an ordinance duly 
adopted by the Council of the City of Zanesville, Ohio on ,2016 and that a true copy 
thereof was certified to the County Auditor of Muskingum County, Ohio, on ________ _ 
2016. 

City Clerk 
City of Zanesville, Ohio 

10714266v 1 12 



RECEIPT OF COUNTY AUDITOR FOR 
LEGISLATION PROVIDING 

FOR THE ISSUANCE OF 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

I, Debra J. Nye, the duly elected, qualified, and acting County Auditor in and for Muskingum 

County, Ohio hereby certify that a certified copy of an ordinance duly adopted by the City Council of the 

City of Zanesville, Ohio on ____ , 2016, providing for the issuance of general obligation bonds 

designated "City of Zanesville, Ohio Various Purpose Bonds, Series 2016," or as otherwise designated by 

the Auditor of said City, in the amount of not to exceed $745,000, was filed in this office on ____ -' 

2016. 

[SEAL] 

WITNESS my hand and official seal at Zanesville, Ohio on ____ -----', 2016. 

County Auditor 
Muskingum County, Ohio 

107 14266v l 



CERTIFICATE OF MAXIMUM MATURITY 

To: The City Council of the 
City of Zanesville, Ohio 

VARIOUS PURPOSE BONDS, SERIES 2016 
( REFUNDS SERIES 20 10 BONDS) 

The undersigned Auditor of the City of Zanesville, Ohio (the "City") as the fiscal officer of the 
City, hereby certifies as follows with respect to the City's Various Purpose Bonds, Series 2016, in the 
aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $745,000 (the "Bonds"), that are to be used to refund a portion 
of the bonds of the City as described below, and the maximum maturity of the Bonds cannot exceed the last 
maturity pennitted by law for the bonds to be refunded, in accordance with Ohio Revised Code Section 
133.34, to wit: 

Street Improvement Bonds, Series 2010, dated May 13, 2010, 
originally issued in the aggregate principal amount of $1 ,210,000, 
the last maturity pennitted by law is December I, 2029. 

Therefore, the maximum maturity of the Bonds cannot be later than December I, 2029. 

Dated: September 26, 2016 

Auditor 
City of Zanesville, Ohio 

107 14266vl 



BOND COUNSEL 

VARIOUS PURPOSE BONDS, SERIES 20 16 
(NOTE REFUNDING PORTION) 

MARGO MOYER, CITY AUDITOR 

RHONDA HESKETT, BUDGET & FINANCE 

CITY OF ZANESVILLE, Omo 

ORDINANCE NO. 16-\07 
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL 

AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF BONDS IN THE AMOUNT OF 
NOT TO EXCEED $2,750,000 FOR THE PURPOSE OF ACQUIRING, 
CONSTRUCTING, RECONSTRUCTING, RENOVATING, 
REPAIRING AND OTHERWISE IMPROVING MUNICIPAL 
FACILITIES, PARTICULARLY SECREST AUDITORIUM AND THE 
CITY JAIL; ACQUIRING LAND AND INTERESTS IN LAND 
NECESSARY FOR THE FOREGOING; EQUIPPING, FURNISHING 
AND EQUIPPING THE SAME; LANDSCAPING AND IMPROVING 
THE SITES THEREOF; RETIRING NOTES PREVIOUSLY ISSUED 
FOR SUCH PURPOSE; AUTHORIZING A COMPETITIVE OR 
NEGOTIATED SALE OF THE BONDS; AUTHORIZING A BOND 
PURCHASE AGREEMENT APPROPRIATE FOR THE SALE OF THE 
BONDS IN THE EVENT OF A NEGOTIATED SALE; AUTHORIZING 
AN OFFICIAL STATEMENT IN CONNECTION WITH THE SALE OF 
THE BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A MUNICIPAL 
BOND INSURANCE POLICY, IF DESIRED, IN CONNECTION 
THEREWITH; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY 

WHEREAS, the City of Zanesville, Ohio (the "City") has issued its $2,500,000 Municipal 

Facilities Notes, Series 2015, dated December 30, 2015 (the "Outstanding Notes"), in anticipation of the 

issuance of the bonds herein described, which Outstanding Notes will mature on December 30, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, it appears advisable to issue bonds to retire the Outstanding Notes; and 

WHEREAS, the Auditor (the "Auditor") of the City has certified to this Council of the City (the 

"Council") that the estimated life of the improvements described in the title of this Ordinance (the "Project") 

which is to be fmanced with the proceeds of the bonds herein described exceeds five (5) years and the 

maximum maturity of said bonds is twenty (20) years; and 

WHEREAS, it is now deemed necessary to issue and sell not to exceed $2,750,000 of such bonds 

for the purpose described in the title of this Ordinance under authority of the general laws of the State of 

Ohio, including Ohio Revised Code Chapter 133, and in particular Section 133.23 thereof; 

107141 86vl 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ZANESVILLE, OHIO, THAT: 

Section 1. Issuance of the Bonds. It is hereby declared necessary to issue bonds of the City 
(the "Bonds") in the maximum principal sum of not to exceed Two Million Seven Hundred Fifty 
Thousand Dollars ($2,750,000), or such lesser amount as shall be determined by the Auditor and certified 
to this Council, for the purpose described in the title of this Ordinance. The Bonds may be issued in one 
or more series. 

Section 2. Combining Bonds for Purposes of Issuance and Sale. It is hereby determined, 
that for the purposes of issuance and sale, it is in the best interest of the City to combine the Bonds with 
other limited tax general obligation bonds of the City authorized by separate ordinance of this Council. 
The Bonds and such other bonds (referred to herein as the "Combined Bonds") shall be designated "City 
of Zanesville, Ohio Various Purpose Bonds, Series 2016", or as otherwise determined by the Auditor. As 
used in this Ordinance, the term "Bonds" shall also mean the Combined Bonds, where appropriate. 

Section 3. Terms of the Bonds. The Bonds shall be issued as fully registered bonds in 
book-entry form only, in such denominations as shall be determined by the Auditor, but not exceeding the 
principal amount of the Bonds on anyone date; shall be numbered consecutively from R-I upward, as 
determined by the Auditor; shall be dated the date determined by the Auditor and set forth in the 
Celtificate of Fiscal Officer provided for hereinbelow; and shall bear interest, payable semiannually on 
such dates as shall be determined by the Auditor and set forth in the Certificate of Fiscal Officer, until the 
principal sum is paid or provision has been duly made therefor. Interest shall be calculated on the basis of 
a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months. 

Section 4. Redemption Provisions of the Bonds. The Bonds shall be subject to optional and 
mandatory redemption prior to stated maturity, as provided in the Certificate of Fiscal Officer. If optional 
redemption of the Bonds at a redemption price exceeding 100% is to take place on any date on which a 
mandatory redemption of the Bonds of the same maturity will take place, the Bonds to be redeemed by 
optional redemption shall be selected by the Bond Registrar (as defmed hereinbelow) prior to the 
selection of the Bonds to be redeemed at par on the same date. 

When partial redemption is authorized, the Bond Registrar shall select Bonds or portions thereof by 
lot within a maturity in such manner as the Bond Registrar may determine, provided, however, that the 
portion of any Bond so selected shall be in the amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof (unless 
otherwise determined by the Auditor) . 

The notice of the call for redemption of Bonds shall identify (i) by designation, letters, numbers or 
other distinguishing marks, the Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed, (ii) the redemption price to be 
paid, (iii) the date fixed for redemption, and (iv) the place or places where the amounts due upon redemption 
are payable. From and after the specified redemption date interest on the Bonds (or portions thereof) called 
for redemption shall cease to accrue. Such notice shall be sent by first class mail at least 30 days prior to the 
redemption date to each registered holder of Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown in the Bond 
Register (as defmed hereinbelow) on the 15th day preceding the date of mailing. Failure to receive such 
notice of any defect therein shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of any Bond. 

Section 5. Form and Execution of the Bonds. The Bonds shall express upon their faces the 
purpose for which they are issued and that they are issued pursuant to this Ordinance; and shall be 
executed by the Auditor and the Mayor of the City (the "Mayor"), in their official capacities, provided 
that either or both of their signatures may be a facsimile. No Bond shall be valid or become obligatory 
for any purpose or shall be entitled to any security or benefit under this Ordinance unless and until a 

10714186vl 2 



certificate of authentication, as printed on the Bond, is signed by the Bond Registrar as authenticating 
agent. Authentication by the Bond Registrar shall be conclusive evidence that the Bond so authenticated 
has been duly issued and delivered under this Ordinance and is entitled to the security and benefit of this 
Ordinance. The certificate of authentication may be signed by any officer or officers of the Bond 
Registrar or by such other person acting as an agent of the Bond Registrar as shall be approved by the 
Auditor on behalf of the City. It shall not be necessary that the same authorized person sign the certificate 
of authentication on all of the Bonds. 

Section 6. Payment of the Bonds. The principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be 
payable in lawful money of the United States of America without deduction for the services of the Bond 
Registrar as paying agent. The principal of the Bonds shall be payable upon presentation and surrender of 
the Bonds at the principal office of the Bond Registrar. Each Bond shall bear interest from the later of the 
date thereof, or the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided 
for, unless the date of authentication of any Bond is less than 15 days prior to an Interest Payment Date, in 
which case interest shall accrue from such Interest Payment Date. Interest on any Bond shall be paid on 
each Interest Payment Date by check or draft mailed to the person in whose name the Bond is registered, 
at the close of business on the 15th day next preceding that Interest Payment Date (the "Record Date") 
(unless such date falls on a non-business day, in which case the Record Date shall be the preceding 
business day), on the Bond Register at the address appearing therein. 

Any interest on any Bond which is payable, but is not punctually paid or provided for, on any 
Interest Payment Date (herein called "Defaulted Interest") shall forthwith cease to be payable to tbe 
registered owner on the relevant Record Date by virtue of having been such owner and such Defaulted 
Interest shall be paid to the registered owner in whose name the Bond is registered at the close of business 
on a date (the "Special Record Date") to be fixed by the Bond Registrar, such Special Record Date to be not 
more than 15 nor less than 10 days prior to the date of proposed payment. The Bond Registrar shall cause 
notice of the proposed payment of such Defaulted Interest and the Special Record Date therefor to be 
mailed, first class postage prepaid, to each Bondholder, at such Bondholder's address as it appears in the 
Bond Register, not less than 10 days prior to such Special Record Date, and may, in its discretion, cause a 
similar notice to be published once in a newspaper in each place where Bonds are payable, but such 
publication shall not be a condition precedent to the establishment of such Special Record Date. 

Subject to the foregoing provisions of this Section, each Bond delivered by the Bond Registrar upon 
transfer of or in exchange for or in lieu of any other Bond shall carry the rights to interest accrued and 
unpaid, and to accrue, which were carried by such other Bond. 

Section 7. Appointment of Bond Registrar. The Auditor is hereby authorized and directed 
to serve as authenticating agent, bond registrar, transfer agent, and paying agent for the Bonds (the "Bond 
Registrar") or to execute on behalf of the City a Bond Registrar Agreement with such bank or other 
appropriate financial institution as shall be acceptable to the Auditor and the Original Purchaser, pursuant 
to which such bank or financial institution shall agree to serve as the Bond Registrar for the Bonds. If at 
any time the Bond Registrar shall be unable or unwilling to serve as such, or the Auditor in such officer's 
discretion shall determine that it would be in the best interest of the City for such functions to be 
performed by another party, the Auditor may, and is hereby authorized and directed to enter into an 
agreement with a national banking association or other appropriate institution experienced in providing 
such services, to perform the services required of the Bond Registrar hereunder. Each such successor 
Bond Registrar shall promptly advise all bondholders of the change in identity and new address of the 
Bond Registrar. So long as any of the Bonds remain outstanding, the City shall cause to be maintained 
and kept by the Bond Registrar, at the office of the Bond Registrar, all books and records necessary for 
the registration, exchange and transfer of Bonds as provided in this Section (the "Bond Register"). 
Subject to the provisions hereof, the person in whose name any Bond shall be registered on the Bond 

IQ714 186vl 3 



Register shall be regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes. Payment of or on account of the 
principal of and interest on any Bond shall be made only to or upon the order of that person. Neither the 
City nor the Bond Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary, but the registration may be 
changed as herein provided. All payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the 
liability upon the Bonds, including the interest thereon, to the extent of the amount or amounts so paid. 

Any Bond, upon presentation and surrender at the office of the Bond Registrar, together with a 
request for exchange signed by the registered owner or by a person authorized by the owner to do so by a 
power of attorney in a form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar, may be exchanged for Bonds of the same 
foml and of any authorized denomination or denominations equal in the aggregate to the urnnatured 
principal amount of the Bonds surrendered, and bearing interest at the same rate and maturing on the same 
date. 

A Bond may be transferred only on the Bond Register upon presentation and surrender thereof at 
the office of tbe Bond Registrar, together with an assignment executed by tbe registered owner or by a 
person authorized by the owner to do so by a power of attorney in a form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar. 
Upon that transfer, the Bond Registrar shall complete, authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bonds of any 
authorized denomination or denominations equal in tbe aggregate to the unmatured principal amount of tbe 
Bonds surrendered, and bearing interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date. 

The City and the Bond Registrar shall not be required to transfer or exchange (i) any Bond during a 
period beginning at the opening of business fifteen (15) days before the day of mailing of a notice of 
redemption of Bonds, and ending at the close of business on the day of such mailing, or (ii) any Bonds 
selected for redemption, in whole or in part, following the date of such mailing. 

In all cases in which Bonds are exchanged or transferred hereunder, the City shall cause to be 
executed and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver Bonds in accordance with the provisions of 
this Ordinance. The exchange or transfer shall be without charge to the owner; except that the City and 
Bond Registrar may make a charge sufficient to reimburse them for any tax or other governmental charge 
required to be paid with respect to the exchange or transfer. The City or the Bond Registrar may require that 
those charges, if any, be paid before it begins the procedure for the exchange or transfer of the Bonds. All 
Bonds issued upon any transfer or exchange shall be the valid obligations of the City, evidencing the same 
debt, and entitled to the same benefits under this Ordinance, as the Bonds surrendered upon that transfer or 
exchange. 

Section 8. Book-Entry System. For purposes of this Ordinance, the following terms shall 
have the following meanings: 

"Book-entry foml" or "book-entry system" means a form or system under which (i) the beneficial 
right to payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds may be transferred only through a book-entry and 
(ii) physical Bonds in fully registered form are issued only to the Depository or its nominee as registered 
owner, with the Bonds "inlmobilized" to the custody of the Depository, and the book-entry is the record that 
identifies the owners of beneficial interests in those Bonds. 

"Depository" means any securities depository that is a clearing agency under federal law operating 
and maintaining, together with its participants, a book-entry system to record beneficial ownership of Bonds 
and to effect transfers of Bonds, in book-entry fonn, and includes The Depository Trust Company (a limited 
purpose trust company), New York, New York. 

Allor any portion of the Bonds may be initially issued to a Depository for use in a book-entry 
system, and the provisions of this Section shall apply, notwithstanding any other provision of this 

10714186vl 4 



Ordinance; (i) there shall be a single Bond of each maturity, (ii) those Bonds shall be registered in the name 
of the Depository or its nominee, as registered owner, and immobilized in the custody of the Depository; 
(iii) the beneficial owners in book-entry form shall have no right to receive Bonds in the form of physical 
securities or certificates; (iv) ownership of beneficial interests in any Bonds in book-entry form shall be 
shown by book-entry on the system maintained and operated by the Depository, and transfers of the 
ownership of beneficial interests shall be made only by the Depository and by book-entry; and (v) the Bonds 
as such shall not be transferable or exchangeable, except for transfer to another Depository or to another 
nominee of a Depository, without further action by the City. Bond service charges on Bonds in book-entry 
form registered in the name of a Depository or its nominee shall be payable in same day funds delivered to 
the Depository or its authorized representative (i) in the case of interest, on each Interest Payment Date, and 
(ii) in all other cases, upon presentation and surrender of Bonds as provided in this Ordinance. 

The Bond Registrar may, with the approval of the City, enter into an agreement with the beneficial 
owner or registered owner of any Bond in the custody of a Depository providing for making all payments to 
that owner of principal and interest on that Bond or any portion thereof (other than any payment of the entire 
unpaid principal amount thereof) at a place and in a manner (including wire transfer of federal funds) other 
than as provided above in this Ordinance, without prior presentation or surrender of the Bond, upon any 
conditions which shall be satisfactory to the Bond Registrar and to the City. That payment in any event 
shall be made to the person who is the registered owner of that Bond on the date that principal is due, or, 
with respect to the payment of interest, as of the applicable date agreed upon as the case may be. The Bond 
Registrar shall furnish a copy of each of those agreements, certified to be correct by the Bond Registrar, to 
other paying agents for Bonds and to the City. Any payment of principal or interest pursuant to such an 
agreement shall constitute payment thereof pursuant to, and for all purposes of, this Ordinance. 

If requested, the Auditor and the Mayor of the City are authorized to execute, acknowledge and 
deliver, in the name of and on behalf of the City, a letter agreement among the City, the Bond Registrar and 
the Depository to be delivered in connection with the issuance of the Bonds to the Depository for use in a 
book-entry system. The City may decide to discontinue use of the book-entry system through the 
Depository. In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to the Depository. 

If any Depository determines not to continue to act as the depository for the Bonds for use in a 
book-entry system, the City and the Bond Registrar may attempt to establish a securities depositorylbook
entry relationship with another qualified Depository under this Ordinance. If the City and the Bond 
Registrar do not or are unable to do so, the City and the Bond Registrar, after the Bond Registrar has made 
provision for notification of the beneficial owners by the then Depository, shall permit withdrawal of the 
Bonds from the Depository and authenticate and deliver bond certificates in fully registered form to the 
assigns of the Depository or its nominee, all at the cost and expense (including costs of printing definitive 
Bonds), if the event is not the result of action or inaction by the City or the Bond Registrar, of those persons 
requesting such issuance. 

Section 9. Debt Service Levv. There shall be and is hereby levied annually on all the 
taxable property in the City, in addition to all other taxes and inside the ten mill limitation, a direct tax 
(the "Debt Service Levy") for each year during which any of the Bonds are outstanding, for the purpose 
of providing, and in an amount which is sufficient to provide, funds to pay interest upon the Bonds as and 
when the same falls due and to provide a fund for the repayment of the principal of the Bonds at maturity 
or upon redemption. The Deht Service Levy shall not be less than the interest and sinking fund tax 
required by Article xn, Section II of the Ohio Constitution. 

The Debt Service Levy shall be and is hereby ordered computed, certified, levied and extended 
upon the tax duplicate and collected by the same officers, in the same manner, and at the same time that 
taxes for general purposes for each of such years are certified, extended and collected. The Debt Service 

107141 86vl 5 



Levy shall be placed before and in preference to all other items and for the full amount thereof. The funds 
derived from the Debt Service Levy shall be placed in a separate and distinct fund, which shall be 
irrevocably pledged for the payment of premium, if any, and the interest on and principal of the Bonds when 
and as the same falls due. Notwithstanding the foregoing or any other provision contained herein, if the City 
determines that funds will be available from other sources for the payment of the Bonds in any year, the 
amount of the Debt Service Levy for such year shall be reduced by the amount of funds which will be so 
available, and the City shall appropriate such funds to the payment of the Bonds in accordance with law. 

Section 10. Income Tax Pledge. Except for any portion of the Bonds that are "self-supporting 
securities" for purposes of Ohio Revised Code Section 133.05(B)(l), the City hereby covenants, pursuant 
to Ohio Revised Code Section 133.05(B)(7), to appropriate annually from lawfully available municipal 
income taxes, and to continue to levy and collect municipal income taxes adequate to produce, amounts 
necessary to meet the debt charges on the Bonds in each year until full payment is made. 

Section 11. Sale of the Bonds. The Auditor is authorized and directed to cause the Bonds to be 
sold by either competitive sale or by negotiated sale. In the event that the Bonds are sold by competitive 
sale, a Notice of Sale shall be published in the form and manner as shall be approved by the Auditor. 
After publication of such Notice of Sale, the Bonds may be awarded and sold to such purchaser (the 
"Competitive Purchaser") as shall offer, in the opinion of the Auditor, the best rate of interest on the 
Bonds. 

In the event that the Bonds are sold through a negotiated sale, the Bonds shall be sold to the 
purchaser or purchasers (collectively, the "Negotiated Purchaser," and together with the Competitive 
Purchaser, the "Original Purchaser") designated in the Certificate of Fiscal Officer. The Auditor is 
authorized and directed to execute on behalf of the City a Bond Purchase Agreement with the Original 
Purchaser (which agreement may be combined with the purchase agreement for the purchase of other 
general obligation bonds authorized by separate ordinances of this Council), setting forth the conditions 
under which the Bonds are to be sold and delivered, which agreement shall be in such form and shall 
contain such terms, covenants and conditions not inconsistent with this Ordinance and pemlitted by 
applicable law as shall be approved by the Auditor and approved as to form by the Law Director. 

The Auditor is authorized and directed to execute on behalf of the City a Certificate of Fiscal 
Officer Relating to Terms of Bonds (the "Certificate of Fiscal Officer") setting forth the Original 
Purchaser for the Bonds, the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds to be issued, the dated date of the 
Bonds, the Purchase Price, the Specified Interest Rates, the Principal Retirement Dates, the Principal 
Retirement Schedule, Mandatory Redemption Dates, Mandatory Sinking Fund Requirements, Term 
Bonds, Term Maturity Dates, the Earliest Optional Redemption Date and the Optional Redemption Prices 
(all as hereinafter defined) and shall include such additional information as shall be required by the terms 
of this Ordinance. 

As used herein: 

"Certificate of Fiscal Officer" means the Certificate of Fiscal Officer Relating (0 Terms of Bonds 
authorized by this Section to be executed by the Auditor setting forth and determining such terms and 
other matters pertaining to the Bonds, their issuance, sale or delivery, as are authorized and directed to be 
detemlined therein by this Ordinance. 

"Earliest Optional Redemption Date" means the date specified in the Certificate of Fiscal Officer 
as the earliest date on which Bonds may be called for redemption at the option of the City. 

I07141 86vl 6 



"Mandatory Redemption Dates" means the first day of the month in the years to be specified in 
the Certificate of Fiscal Officer in which the Bonds that are Term Bonds are to be redeemed pursuant to 
Mandatory Sinking Fund Requirements. 

"Mandatory Sinking Fund Requirements" means, as to Bonds maturing on Term Maturity Dates, 
amounts sufficient to redeem such Bonds (less the amount of credit as provided in the Certificate of Fiscal 
Officer) on each Mandatory Redemption Date, as are to be set forth in the Certificate of Fiscal Officer. 

"Optional Redemption Prices," if any, for the Bonds shall be as set forth in the Certificate of 
Fiscal Officer. 

"Principal Retirement Dates" means the day on which the Bonds are to be retired in accordance 
with their stated terms, which dates are to be specified in the Certificate of Fiscal Officer; provided that 
the Principal Retirement Dates shall be such that the final maturity of the principal portion of the Bonds 
included in the Bonds is not later than the final maturity date permitted pursuant to Section 133.20, Ohio 
Revised Code. 

"Principal Retirement Schedule" means the schedule for the retirement of the principal of the 
Bonds on the Principal Retirement Dates, in accordance with their stated terms, in the years of Principal 
Retirement Dates and in the amounts to be retired which shall be detennined in the Certificate of Fiscal 
Officer. 

"Purchase Price" means that amount which is to be detennined in the Certificate of Fiscal Officer, 
but such amount is to be no less than 97% of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds, together with 
accrued interest on the Bonds from their date to the date of their delivery and payment therefor. 

"Specified Interest Rates" means the interest rate or rates at which the Bonds bear interest, which 
rates are to be determined in the Certificate of Fiscal Officer, provided the true interest cost of the Bonds 
shall not exceed five per centum (5.00%) per annum. 

"Term Bonds" means those Bonds, as are determined in the Certificate of Fiscal Officer, that are 
to mature on Term Maturity Dates, unless previously redeemed pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund 
Requirements. 

"Term Maturity Dates" means the day on which Bonds that are Term Bonds are to be retired in 
accordance with their stated terms, which date or dates are to be detennined in the Certificate of Fiscal 
Officer. 

The Auditor, the Budget & Finance Director, the Mayor, and the City Clerk are authorized and 
directed to make the necessary arrangements on behalf of the City to establish the date, location, 
procedure and conditions for the delivery of the Bonds to the Original Purchaser. Those officers are 
further directed. to take all steps necessary to effect due execution, authentication and delivery of the 
Bonds under the terms of this Ordinance and the Certificate of Fiscal Officer. Further, such officers are 
hereby authorized and directed to take such action and to execute and deliver, on behalf of the City, such 
additional instruments, agreements, certificates, and other documents as may be in their discretion 
necessary or appropriate in order to carry out the intent ofthis Ordinance. Such documents shall be in the 
fonn not substantially inconsistent with the terms of this Ordinance, as they in their discretion shall deem 
necessary or appropriate. 

1071 41 86v l 7 



Any accrued interest received from the sale of the Bonds shall be transferred to the Bond 
Retirement Fund to be applied to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds in the manner 
provided by law. Any premium from the sale of the Bonds shall be deposited into the fund or funds 
specified in the Certificate of Fiscal Officer and used for the proper purposes of such fund or funds. 

Section 12. Federal Tax Law Compliance. The City hereby covenants that it shall comply 
with the requirements of all existing and future laws which must be satisfied in order that interest on the 
Bonds is and will continue to be excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, including 
without limitation restrictions on the use of the property financed with the proceeds of the Bonds so that 
the Bonds will not constitute "private activity bonds" within the meaning of Section 141 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). The City further covenants that it shall restrict the use 
of the proceeds of the Bonds in such manner and to such extent, if any, as may be necessary, after taking 
into account reasonable expectations at the time the Bonds are issued, so that they will not constitute 
arbitrage bonds under Section 148 of the Code and the regulations prescribed thereunder (the 
"Regulations"). 

The Auditor, or any other officer, including the Mayor, is hereby authorized and directed (a) to 
make or effect any election, selection, designation, choice, consent, approval or waiver on behalf of the City 
with respect to the Bonds as permitted or required to be made or given under the federal income tax laws, 
for the purpose of assuring, enhancing or protecting favorable tax treatment or the status of the Bonds or 
interest thereon or assisting compliance with requirements for that purpose, reducing the burden or expense 
of such compliance, reducing any rebate amount or any payment of penalties, or making any payments of 
special amounts in lieu of making computations to determine, or paying, any excess earnings as rebate, or 
obviating those amounts or payments, as determined by the Auditor, which action shall be in writing and 
signed by the Auditor, or any other officer, including the Mayor, on behalf of the City; (b) to take any and 
all actions, make or obtain calculations, and make or give reports, covenants and certifications of and on 
behalf of the City, as may be appropriate to assure the exclusion of interest from gross income and the 
intended tax status of the Bonds; and (c) to give an appropriate certificate on behalf of the City, for inclusion 
in the transcript of proceedings, setting forth the facts, estimates and circumstances, and reasonable 
expectations of the City pertaining to Section 148 and the Regulations, and the representations, warranties 
and covenants of the City regarding compliance by the City with Sections 141 through 150 of the Code and 
the Regulations. 

The Auditor shall keep and maintain adequate records pertaining to investment of all proceeds of 
the Bonds sufficient to permit, to the maximum extent possible and presently foreseeable, the City to 
comply with any federal law or regulation now or hereafter having applicability to the Bonds which limits 
the amount of bond proceeds which may be invested on an unrestricted yield or requires the City to rebate 
arbitrage profits to the United States Department of the Treasury. The Auditor is hereby authorized and 
directed to file such reports with, and rebate arbitrage profits to, the United States Department of the 
Treasury, to the extent that any federal law or regulation having applicability to the Bonds requires any such 
reports or rebates. 

Section 13. Municipal Bond Insurance. The Auditor, or any other officer, including the 
Mayor, is authorized to make appropriate arrangements, if such officer deems it in the best interest of the 
City, for the issuance of a municipal bond insurance policy with respect to all or any portion of the Bonds, 
including executing and delivering a commitment therefor and certificates and other documents in 
connection therewith. All additional provisions required to be authorized by this Council for the issuance 
of a municipal bond insurance policy shall be contained in the Certificate of Fiscal Officer or in the 
transcript of proceedings described herein. 

10714186v1 8 



Section 14. Official Statement. The distribution of an Official Statement of the City, in 
preliminary and final form, relating to the original issuance of the Bonds is hereby authorized, if the 
Auditor determines that it is necessary or advisable to prepare and distribute an Official Statement in 
connection with the issuance of the Bonds. If the Auditor so determines, then the Auditor or any other 
officer of the City, including the Mayor, are hereby authorized and directed to negotiate, prepare and 
execute, on behalf of the City and in their official capacity, the Official Statement and any supplements 
thereto as so executed in connection with the original issuance of the Bonds, and they are authorized and 
directed to advise the Original Purchaser in writing regarding limitations on the use of the Official 
Statement and any supplements thereto for purposes of marketing or reoffering the Bonds as they deem 
necessary or appropriate to protect the interests of the City. The Auditor and any other officer ofthe City, 
including the Mayor, are each authorized to execute and deliver, on behalf of the City and in their official 
capacities, such certificates in connection with the accuracy of the Official Statement, in either 
preliminary or final form, and any supplements thereto as may, in their judgment, be necessary or 
appropriate. 

Section 15. Obtaining of Rating for the Bonds. The obtaining or updating of a rating or 
ratings on the Bonds and the City is hereby authorized if the Auditor determines that it is necessary or 
advisable in connection with the original issuance of the Bonds. If the Auditor so determines, then the 
Auditor and any other officer of the City are hereby authorized and directed to take all steps necessary to 
obtain such rating or ratings. 

Section 16. Transcript of Proceedinl!s: Execution of Additional Documents. The officer 
having charge of the minutes of the Council and any other officers of the City, or any of them 
individually, are hereby authorized and directed to prepare and certify a true transcript of proceedings 
pertaining to the Bonds and to furnish a copy of such transcript to the Original Purchaser. Such transcript 
shall include certified copies of all proceedings and records of the Council relating to the power and 
authority of the City to issue the Bonds and certificates as to matters within their knowledge or as shown 
by the books and records under their custody and control, including but not limited to: (i) a general 
certificate of the City Clerk and the Law Director; and (ii) a no-litigation certificate of the Mayor, the 
Auditor, and the Law Director. Such certified copies and certificates shall be deemed representations of 
the City as to the facts stated therein. 

The Auditor and any other officer of the City, including the Mayor, is hereby authorized and directed 
to take such action (including, but not limited to, hiring professionals or consultants as may be needed to 
facilitate the issuance of the Bonds) and to execute and deliver, on behalf of the City, such additional 
instruments, agreements, certificates, and other documents as may be in their discretion necessary or 
appropriate in order to carry out the intent of this Ordinance. Such documents shall be in the form not 
substantially inconsistent with the terms of this Ordinance, as they in their discretion shall deem necessary 
or appropriate. 

Section 17. Appointment of Municipal Advisor. Ross, Sinclaire & Associates, LLC is hereby 
appointed to serve as municipal advisor to the City for the Bonds. The Mayor, Auditor, City Clerk, or 
any other officer of the City is hereby authorized to enter into any agreements necessary to memorialize 
this relationship. The fees to be paid to such firm shall be subject to review and approval of the Auditor, 
shall not exceed the fees customarily charged for such services, and shall be paid upon closing of the 
financing from the proceeds of the Bonds or as otherwise determined by the Auditor. 

Section 18. Appointment of Bond Counsel. The law firm of Bricker & Eckler LLP is hereby 
appointed to serve as Bond Counsel with respect to this fmancing. 

107 14 186v1 9 



Section 19. Satisfaction of Conditions for Bond Issuance. It is hereby found and deternuned 
that all acts, conditions and things necessary to be done precedent to and in the issuing of the Bonds in 
order to make them legal, valid and binding obligations of the City have happened, been done and been 
performed in regular and due form as required by law; that the full faith, credit and revenue of the City 
are hereby irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of the principal and interest thereof at maturity; 
and that no linlitation of indebtedness or taxation, either statutory or constitutional, has been exceeded in 
issuing the Bonds. 

Section 20. Compliance with Open Meeting Requirements. It is hereby found and 
detennined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance 
were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its 
committees that resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with 
all legal requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

Section 21. Filing of Bond Ordinance. Tbe City Clerk is hereby directed to forward a 
certified copy of this Ordinance to the Auditor of Muskingum County, Ohio. 

Section 22. Emergency Measure. This Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency 
measure necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health, safety and welfare of the City and its 
inhabitants, and for the further reason that the Outstanding Notes heretofore issued are about to mature 
and it is necessary to make immediate provision for their repayment in order to preserve the credit of the 
City; wherefore this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and immediately after its 
adoption. 

Passed: __________ , 2016 

Attest: 
City Clerk President of Council 

Approved: _______ , 2016 

Mayor 

Approved as to form: 

107141 86vl 10 



CERTIFICATE 

The undersigned City Clerk hereby certifies that the foregoing is a true copy of an ordinance duly 
adopted by the Council of the City of Zanesville, Ohio on , 2016 and that a true copy 
thereof was certified to the County Auditor of Muskingum County, Ohio, on ________ _ 
2016. 

City Clerk 
City of Zanesville, Ohio 

107 141 86vl 11 



RECEIPT OF COUNTY AUDITOR FOR 
LEGISLATION PROVIDING 

FOR THE ISSUANCE OF 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

V ARIOUS PURPOSE BONDS, SERIES 20 16 
(NOTE REFlR\'DING PORTION) 

I , Debra J. Nye, the duly elected, qualified, and acting County Auditor in and for Muskingum 

County, Ohio hereby certify that a certified copy of an ordinance duly adopted by the City Council of the 

City of Zanesville, Ohio on _____ " 2016, providing for the issuance of general obligation bonds 

designated "City of Zanesville, Ohio Various Purpose Bonds, Series 2016," or as otherwise designated by 

the Auditor of said City, in the amount of not to exceed $2,750,000, was fi led in this office on 

___ ---', 2016. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal at Zanesville, Ohio on _____ " 2016. 

[SEAL] 

107141 86vl 

County Auditor 
Muskingum County, Ohio 



VARIOUS PURPOSE BONDS, SERIES 20 16 
(NOTE REFUNDING PORTION) 

CERTIFICATE OF ESTIMATED LIFE AND MAXIMUM MATURITY 

To: The City Council of the 
City of Zanesville, Ohio 

The undersigned Auditor of the City of Zanesville, Ohio (the "City") as the fiscal officer of the 
City, hereby certifies as follows: 

I. The estimated life of the improvements described as follows (the "Improvements") exceeds five 
years: 

acqUlrmg, constructing, reconstructing, renovating, repairing and 
otherwise improving municipal facilities , particularly Secrest Auditorium 
and the City jail, acquiring land and interests in land necessary for the 
foregoing, equipping, furnishing and equipping the same, and 
Landscaping and improving the sites thereof 

2. The maximum maturity of the bonds proposed to be issued to pay the cost of the Improvements, 
calculated in accordance with Section 133.20, Ohio Revised Code, is twenty (20) years . 

Dated: September 26, 2016 

Auditor 
City of Zanesville, Ohio 

107141 86v 1 



II 

Council-Mayor Government 
Jeff Tilton, Mayor 

:IVED 

OCT 05 2016 

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

M EM 0 

TO: Honorable Members of Council 

tyof 
401 Market Street, Zanesville, Ohio 43701 

Phone: (740) 455-0601 xl0l 
Email : csaunders@coz.org 

Department of Public Service 
Engineering Division 

Charles M. Saunders, P.E., City Engineer 

II 

FROM: 

DATE: 

Charles M. Saunders, City Engineer e M S 

10/5/2016 

RE: Ord No. 16-108 Waive Readings 

Ordinance 16-108 authorizes the City to provide the consent to allow ODOT to perform bridge inspection 
services for municipal bridges within the City of Zanesville at no cost to the city. This ordinance will cover 
bridge inspections for 2017, 2018,2019. 

Council previously passed Ordinance 14-24 which provided the consent to ODOT to perform these same 
services for 2014, 2015, & 2016. Prior to that the expense of these inspections was borne by the City. 

ODOT has asked for this legislation to be returned in November. Therefore, the administration requests 
the readings be waived so that this legislation becomes effective in November. If the readings are waived 
we can meet the timeline without the need for emergency passage. 



AN ORDINANCE ENACTED BY THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE 
OF MUSKINGUM COUNTY, OHIO FOR BRIDGE 

INSPECTION PROGRAM SERVICES, INCLUDING, BUT 

NOT LIMITED TO BRIDGE LOAD RATING 

CALCULATIONS, SCOUR ASSESSMENTS, BRIDGE 
INSPECTIONS, AND FRACTURE CRITICAL PLAN 

DEVElOPMENT. 

PRELIMINARY LEGISLATION 

Consent 

Ordinance/Resolution # 16-108 

PID No. 102554 

County/Route/Section 

The fo llowing is __ --'au:nuO..l.rudlJ.in[LailJnllc;J:e~ __ enacted by the City of Zanesville 
(Ordinance/Resolution) (Local Public Agency) 

of 

liMUJI"'ls>Jlk.l.lin"'~;J.IJu.m!1....l..C ... o.l.llJlln.l.ltYL-__ , Ohio, hereinafter referred to as the Local Public Agency (LPA). 

SECTION 1- Project Description 

WHEREAS, the (LPA) has determined the need for the described project: 

Bridge Inspection Progrom Services, including, but not limited to bridge lood rating calculatians, 

scaur assessments, bridge inspections, and fracture critical plan development. 

NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City of Zanesville of Muskingum County. Ohio. 
(LPA) 

SECTION 11- Consent Statement 

Being in the public interest, the LPA gives consent to the Director of Transportation to complete the 

above-described project. 

SECTION III - Cooperation Statement 

The LPA sha ll cooperate with the Director of Transportation in the above-described project as follows: 

The State shall assume and bear 100% of all the cost of Bridge Inspection Program Services requested by 

the City and agreed to by the State. Eligible Bridge Inspection Services are described in the Consultant's 

Scope of Services Task Order Contract (Exhibit A). The LPA agrees to pay 100% of the cost of those 

features which are not included in Exhibit A. 



Ordinance 16-108 Exhibit A 

PID No.: 102554 

SECTION IV - Utilities and Right-or-Way Statement 

The LPA agrees that all right-of-way required for the described project will be made available in accordance with 
current State and Federal regulations. 

SECTION V Authority to Sign 

I, Mayor Jeff Tilton 
(Contractual Agent) 

of said _-,C"ityUJo",f..JZ",a!!n",e;;:sv~i1!lll<.e ___ is hereby empowered on behalf of the 
(LPA) 

City of Zanesville to enter into contracts with the Director of Transportation which is necessary to 
(LPA) 

Complete the above described project. 

Passed: ,2016 
(Date) 

Attested: 
(Clerk) 

Attested: 
(Title) 

(Contractual Agent ofLPA - title) 

(President of Counci l) 

Approved as to form 

~~~~-~' ~/
~6R>sOFFICE 

The __________ is hereby declared to be an emergency measure to expedite the highway project and 
(OrdinanceIResolution) 

to promote highway safety. Following appropriate legislative action, it shall take effect and be in force immediately 

upon its passage and approval, otherwise it shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed 

bylaw. 



Ordinance 16-108 Exhibit A 

PID No.: 102554 

CERTIFICATE OF COPY 
STATE OF OHIO 

___ -"C"i"ty"o"'f'-'Z"''''an'''e"s'-'vlJil'''le''---__ of ___ ~M!lugs~klJinlJg;!u!!m!L _____ County, Ohio 
(LPA) 

I, Susan Culbertson. as Clerk of the Zanesville City Council 
( LPA) 

of Zanesville , Ohio, do hereby certify thaI the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

_O""rd"'i.!!na""n"'c"'ecJI,,6c-...,IO"'S'----__________ adopted by the legislative Authority of the said 
(OrdinanceIResolulion) 

'=C"'it"'y-'o1!f ... Z"'a!!n"'es'-'v"il"'le"---_ on the ______ day of ______ _ 
(LPA) 

That the publication of such __ '=O"-rd","·n"'a!!n"ce"---_ __ has been made and certified of record according to 
(OrdinanceiResoiution) 

Law; that no proceedings looking to a referendum upon such ____ '=O"-r"d!!in"'a!!n"ce"---_____ have been taken; 
(Ordinance/Resolution) 

and that such _--'O"'r"d!!in"'a!!!n-"c"'e~ ___ and certificate of publication thereof are of record in, ...:V~o!1!l!l!u!!m!J:e,---__ _ 
Page (Ordinance/Resolution) 

(Recon:l No.) 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed my offi cial seal, if applicable, 
this day of 20 16. 

(CITY SEAL) ---,C",i...,tYL-_ of 
(LPA) 

(Clerk) 

Zanesville. County, Ohio 

( If the LPA is designated as a City then the "City Seal" is required. If no Seal, then a letter stating '"No Seal is required to accompany the 
exccuted legislation.) 

The aforegoing is accepted as a basis for proceeding with the project herein described. 

For the _-"C"'it"y ______ of Zanesville , Ohio. 
(LPA) 

Attested: ________ _ Date _____ _ 
(Contractual Agent) 

••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

For the State of Ohio 

Attested: ________ _ Date ______ _ 
(Director, Ohio Department of Transportation) 



16-1 08 Exhibit A 

General Engineering Services Scope of Services 
Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering 

PIO No_ 102554 

Scope of Services Meeting Date: **/'*/'* 
Approved Final Scope of Services Minutes Date: **/'*/'* 

GENERAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 
Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering 

Scope of Services 

The CONSULTANT may be required to perform the following services on a task order type 
basis for bridges designated by regulation or by agreement as City or Village inspection 
responsibility. Consultants must be prequalified for Level 1 Bridge Inspection services, which 
may include but are not limited to the following: 

Task 1 - Scour Tasks 
Task 1A - Scour Critical Assessment 
Task 1B - Scour Plan-of-Action 
Task 1C - Scour Analysis 

Task 2 - Load Rating Tasks 
Task 2A - Field Measurements for Load Rating 
Task 2B - Load Rating Calculations 

Task 3 - SMS Structure Inventory and Review 

Task 4 - Inspection Procedures 
Task 4A - Fracture Critical Plan 
Task 4B - Underwater Inspection Procedures 

Task 5 - Bridge Inspection 
Task 5A - Routine Bridge Inspection 
Task 58 - Fracture Critical Inspection 
Task 5C - Underwater Dive Inspection 

I of 15 



16-1 08 
Exhibit A 

General Engineering Services Scope of Services 
Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering 

PIO No. 102554 

Services shall be conducted in accordance with the following: 

• ODOT Manual of Bridge Inspection, Latest Version 

• Hydraulic Engineering Circulars 18, 20 and 23 

• The Manual for Bridge Evaluation , Second Edition 2013 interim with revisions, AASHTO 

Publication 

• Bridge Inspector's Reference Manual , FHWA NHI Publication Number: 12-049, 

Publication Year: 2012 

• Underwater Bridge Inspection, FHWA Publication Number: FHWA NHI-10-027, 

Publication Year: 2010 

• ODOT SMS Bridge and Inventory Coding Guide, Latest Version 

• ODOT Bridge Design Manual, Latest Version 

All work shall be performed on an actual cost basis. The CONSULTANT shall maintain a 
project cost accounting system that will segregate costs for individual task orders. 

The duration of the agreement will be thirty-six (36) months from the authorization date of the 
agreement. 

The Department will be performing an annual Quality Assurance Review (QAR) for each 
selected consultant in accordance with Manual of Bridge Inspection to ensure accuracy and 
consistency of the inspection and documentation in SMS. This typically includes an office 
and field review. 

The project will be divided in to four (4) sub-projects (SP). A CONSULTANT will be selected 
for each sub-project. Municipalities opted into the previous inspection program will have the 
option to renew their legislation. The sub-projects have the following general geographic 
areas, category characteristics, and maximum contract values for the municipalities with with 
municipal inspection responsibility obtained from SMS data as of July 2016: 

Proiect: SP01 - District 1, 2, &31, Total Structures = 406' 
Type Span - < 20' 20' < Span =< 60' 60' < Span =< 200' Span > 200' Total 
Single Span 157 149 21 0 327 
Multi-Span 20 19 27 13 79 
Culvert 116 33 0 0 149 

Truss 0 7 14 0 3 
Underwater Inspection 0 0 0 0 0 
Fracture Critical 0 2 2 0 4 
Inspection 

, Level 1 bridge Inspection structures 

2 of 15 



, 

Project: SP02 - District 
Type 
Single Span 
Multi-Span 
Culvert 
Truss 
Underwater Inspection 
Fracture Critical 
Inspection 

16-108 Exhibit A 

General Engineering Services Scope of Services 
Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering 

PIO No. 102554 

4,11, &12), Total Structures = 211' 
Span =< 20' 20' < Span - < 60' 60' < Span =< 200' Span > 200' Total 

70 71 20 0 161 
6 7 22 15 50 

51 23 1 0 75 
13 12 38 0 6 
0 0 0 1 1 
0 1 4 0 5 

Level 1 Bridge Inspection structures 

Project: SP03 - District 5,6, &10), Total Structures = 285' 
Type Span =< 20' 20' < Span =< 60' 60' < Span =< 200' Span > 200' Total 
Single Span 104 99 24 0 227 
Multi-Span 4 6 31 17 58 
Culvert 72 32 4 0 108 
Truss 0 0 54 0 7 
Underwater Inspection 0 0 0 1 1 
Fracture Critical 0 0 7 0 7 
Inspection 

, Level 1 bridge inspection structures 

Project: SP04 - District 7, 8 &9), Total Structures = 377' 
Type Span =< 20' 20' < Span =< 60' 60' < Span =< 200' Span > 200' Total 
Single Span 121 118 22 0 261 

Multi-Span 23 44 37 12 116 

Culvert 109 86 4 0 199 

Truss 0 7 21 12 5 

Underwater Inspection 0 0 1 0 1 

Fracture Critical 0 2 3 1 6 
Inspection 

, Level 1 bridge inspection structures 

3 of 15 



16· 108 Exhibit A 

General Engineering Services Scope of Services 
Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering 

PIO No. 102554 

Please note that the total number of structure types is estimated based on current SMS data 
and may be adjusted when tasks are assigned. The estimated annual contract price value 
for each sub-project is as follows: 

SP01 $280,000 
SP02 $200,000 
SP03 $230,000 
SP04 $290,000 

CONSULTANT shall clearly deSignate in the letter of intent the SP(s) they wish to be 
considered for. 

Three (3) copies of the letter of intent shall be submitted. The letter of intent shall 
demonstrate that the CONSULTANT has a clear understanding of the scope of services. 

Price Proposal Due Date: **/**/** 

UNDERSTANDING 

1. Inspections shall be completed by firms prequalified with OOOT for Level 1 bridge 
inspection with full time staff according to Manual of Bridge Inspection. 

2. All reports and records compiled under this agreement shall become the property of the 
City or Village and shall be housed in the City or Village. OOOT shall receive an electronic 
copy of plans, analysis files , reports and other items mentioned below. 

a) CONSULTANT shall perform all applicable updates to SMS with new or revised 
information for structure inventory and appraisal data, inspections, scour, fracture 
critical members, and load ratings. 

b) CONSULTANT shall submit copies of all reports and calculations electronically, or 
in hard copies when requested, to the City or Village for inclusion in their bridge 
records. 

c) This includes, as applicable, a printed copy of the inspection report, Scour Plan-of
Action, Fracture Critical Plan, load rating report, gusset plate analysis, inspection 
procedures, and field measurement notes, digital pictures as well as a reproducible 
digital data file (.pdf, .doc, and .xls formats). 

3. Copies of all transmittal letters related to this Task Order shall be submitted to Central 
Office, Office of Structural Engineering. 

a) When required, CONSULTANTS shall locate the original construction plans, as
built, and shop drawings from archive locations specified by the municipality and 
upload them onto SMS. 

4 of 15 



16-1 08 Exhibit A 

General Engineering Services Scope of Services 
Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering 

PIO No. 102554 

Services to be furnished by CONSULTANT may include: 

TASK 1 - SCOUR TASKS 

Task 1A - Scour Critical Susceptibility NBIS Item 113) - The CONSULTANT shall 
refer to the most recent OOOT Manual of Bridge Inspection. Oeliverables include field 
notes, a completed Scour Critical Assessment Checklist as per Appendix I of the 2014 
Manual of Bridge Inspection, and any other reference material needed for the bridge 
owner to properly maintain their bridge files. 

Task 1 B - Scour Plan-of-Action - The CONSULTANT shall refer to the most recent 
OOOT Manual of Bridge Inspection Appendix H for the scope of this task. 
Oeliverables include a completed Scour Plan-of-Action, field notes, calculations, and 
any other reference material needed by bridge owner to maintain bridge files. 

TASK 2 - LOAD RATING TASKS 

Task 2A - Field Measurements for Load Rating - Should no plans exist or if 
additional information is required, each main member shall be field measured for load 
rating . The condition of the member should be noted on the field documentation. All 
measurements shall be included in the load rating report. 

Task 2B - Load Rating Calculations - A bridge carrying vehicular traffic shall be 
rated to determine the safe load carrying capacity. The CONSULTANT shall review 
existing bridge plans and inspection reports and other inspection information such as 
photographs and estimates of section loss for bridge members and connections. The 
analysis for existing structures shall be performed for AASHTO HS20-44 [MS 18) 
(truck, lane, & military) loading for both inventory and operating levels, and for the four 
Ohio Legal Loads including the special hauling vehicles (2F1 , 3F1 , 4F1, and 5C1, 
SU4, SU5, SU6, SU7, and NRL) at operating level. The CONSULTANT shall try to 
complete the load rating analysis utilizing BrR (Virtis) at first. Hand-calculations or 
Spreadsheets if BrR is not applicable. The BrR analysis file, other load rating files , and 
BR100 shall be included with the submittal to OSE. 

The inventory and operating ratings shall be coded as per the most recent version of 
the OOOT Bridge Inventory Coding Guide. Update SMS Inventory with the load rating 
results and upload BR100 pdf file. 

The electronic deliverable shall include if applicable an Excel spreadsheet or other 
files used for analysis for each bridge which shall include the member areas, member 
capacities both with and without section loss, influence lines (can be the ordinates or 
graph of the lines), dead loads and dead load stresses in members, live loads and live 

5 of 15 



16-108 Exhibit A 

General Engineering Services Scope of Services 
Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering 

PIO No. 102554 

load stresses in members for all truck loadings and the load ratings of the members. 
Truck loadings to be used for the ratings are specified in BDM Section 900. 

The Load Rating Report shall be prepared by a registered or non-registered engineer 
and it shall be checked, signed, sealed and dated by an Ohio Registered Professional 
Engineer. 

The Load Rating Report shall explain the method used to calculate the load rating of 
each bridge. 

AASHTO Load Factor Rating (LFR) shall be utilized for all bridges not designed by 
Load and Resistance Factor Design. AASHTO Load and Resistance Factor Rating 
(LRFR) shall be utilized for all structures designed for HL93 loading. 

Load Rating Report Submittal to the City or Village shall include: 

a. Two (2) printed copies and one electronic pdf copy of the Load Rating Report 
for each bridge. 

b. Final summary of inventory and operating ratings for each member and the 
overall ratings of the structure shall be presented for each live load truck. An 
acceptable format is ODOT form BR-100. 

c. Analysis program input files. Both input and output files shall be submitted when 
programs other than BrR or spreadsheets are used. 

d. All calculations related to the load rating. 

TASK 3 - SMS STRUCTURE INVENTORY AND REVIEW 
The scope of this task includes a limited review of the structure inventory data in the 
ODOT SMS. In general, the CONSULTANT shall review specific existing ODOT 
bridge inventory records (as provided by the City and approved by ODOT) of the 
designated bridge. The CONSULTANT may download the inventory report, which 
contains inventory data for each bridge on file with ODOT from the ODOT website. 
The CONSULTANT shall verify this data and determine if the ODOT SMS structure 

file information needs changing. If no changes are necessary then no SMS inventory 
needs to be filled out. If changes are necessary, the scope of this task shall also 
include completing and filing inventory updates (and supplements, as needed) in SMS. 
The CONSULTANT shall refer to the ODOT Office of Structural Engineering Inventory 
and Coding Guide of SMS for inventory coding details. 

6 of 15 



16-1 08 Exhibit A 

General Engineering Services Scope of Services 
Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering 

PIO No. 102554 

TASK 4 -INSPECTION PROCEDURES 

Task 4A - Fracture Critical Plan - A Fracture Critical Member Plan and inspection 
procedure shall be developed and updated. For more details, refer to Chapter 4: 
Inspection Types in the Manual of Bridge Inspection. It shall include: 

1. Sketches of the superstructure with locations of all fatigue and fracture prone 
details identified. 
a. Use framing plan or schematic with detail locations labeled and a legend 

explaining each labeled item on the scheme. 
b. Use an elevation view for trusses. 
c. Classify similar fatigue/fracture prone details as types (e.g. end of partial 

cover plate). 

2. A table or location of important structural details indicating: 
a. Type of detail (e.g. end of partial cover plate, short web gap, etc.) 
b. Location of each occurrence of detail 
c. AASHTO Fatigue Category of detail 
d. Identify retrofits previously installed 

3. Risk Factors Influencing the inspector access. 

Photos and sketches shall be properly referenced . The CONSULTANT shall refer to 
the most recent ODOT Manual of Bridge Inspection for additional details on the scope 
of this task. 

Task 4B - Underwater Inspection Procedures - An underwater inspection procedure shall 
be developed. For more details, refer to Chapter 4: Underwater Inspections in the 
Manual of Bridge Inspection. 

TASK 5 - BRIDGE INSPECTION 

Task 5A - Routine Bridge Inspection (SMS Input) - Perform a routine field 
inspection of the structure to determine the general condition . The CONSULTANT 
shall refer to the most recent ODOT Manual of Bridge Inspection for additional details 
on the scope of this task. Section 1111 of the Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21" 
Century Act (MAP-21) modified 23 U.S.C.144, requires Ohio to report bridge element 
level data for NBIS bridges on the National Highway System (NHS) to FHWA. A 
condition rating or element level inspection will be assigned. This task includes: 
Condition Rating Inspection for non-NBI structures, Condition Rating Inspection for 
NBI structures, and Element Level Inspection for NBI classified as NHS. 

7 of 15 



16-108 Exhibit A 

General Engineering Services Scope of Services 
Central Office. Office of Structural Engineering 

PIO No. 102554 

Task 58 - Fracture Critical Inspection - Perform a fracture critical field inspection of 
fracture critical items. The CONSULTANT shall update the FCM inspection procedure 
with current photos and descriptions. The CONSULTANT shall refer to the most recent 
OOOT Manual of Bridge Inspection for additional details on the scope of this task. 

Task 5C - Underwater Dive Inspection_- Perform Underwater/In-Water inspection 
of substructure units according to the cycle shown in SMS. Emergency underwater 
inspection may arise for specific structures over the duration of the contract period . 
Work shall be done in accordance with the reference manuals and inspection 
procedure. Scour risk shall be evaluated after field and data collection. 

8 of 15 



16-108 Exhibit A 

General Engineering Services Scope of Services 
Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering 

PIO No. 102554 

Agreement Administration Procedures 

I. Type I Task Order Notification and Authorization Procedures for task orders less than 
$10,000 with a well-defined scope of services 

A. Central Office will identify a task order. assign a task order number and develop a 
detailed scope of services. 

B. Central Office will authorize the CONSULTANT to perform the task by standard 
authorization letter that includes: 
1. A detailed scope of services for the task order. 
2. The completion time from authorization. 
3. The maximum compensation (including net fee). 

a. The net fee shall be calculated as 11 % of actual cost (labor + overhead 
+ direct non-salary expenses). Subconsultant net fees shall be 
calculated in the same manner but the prime CONSULTANT shall not 
earn net fees on subconsultant costs. 

II. Type II Task Order Proposal Request, Review and Authorization Procedures for task 
orders greater than $10,000 

A. Central Office will identify a task order. assign a task order number and develop a 
detailed scope of services 

B. Central Office will prepare a request for a task order proposal in the format included 
herein and transmit it to the CONSULTANT. Review of the task order request and task 
order proposal preparation are allowable costs and shall be shown as a separate line 
item in the proposal. 

C. Standard Proposal Format - Each Task Order Proposal shall include the following 
elements: 

1. Letter of transmittal with reference to include: 
a. Central Office General Engineering Services Agreement 
b. PID No. 
c. Agreement No. 
d. Task Order No. 
The project for which the task order is being performed shall NOT be in 
the letter of transmittal reference. but shall be referenced in the body of 
the letter. 

2. All other proposal requirements shall conform to Chapter 6. Price 
Proposals for Agreements and Modifications. of the current 
SpeCifications for Consulting Services. 

3. Appendix A of the CONSULTANT's proposal shall include the task order 
proposal request transmitted to the CONSULTANT by the District. 

D. Central Office will review the CONSULTANT's proposal for: 
1. Adherence to submittal requirements . 
2. Compliance with the scope of services. 
3. Mathematical accuracy. 
4. Labor hours and rates . 
5. Net fee percentage. 

E. Central Office will resolve any issues with the CONSULTANT and obtain a revised 
proposal (if necessary). 

F. Central Office will authorize the CONSULTANT to proceed with the task. 

9 of 15 



16-108 Exhibit A 

General Engineering Services Scope of Services 
Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering 

PIO No. 102554 

III. Task Order Identification and Numbering 

A. The task order numbering system shall be a three component series consisting of the 
Sub-Project (SP) number assigned to each consultant under this PIO, second number 
is for the year, third is for sequential number of task orders. 

1. For example, the first task order issued in in 2017 for SP01 is SP01-2017(1). 

a. Continuing task orders on that project would be numbered SP01-2017(2). 

2. A new task order number shall be assigned rather than increase the fee of an 
existing task order. 

IV. Invoice and Project Schedule Requirements 

A. The CONSULTANT shall provide monthly invoices and project schedules in the format 
transmitted with the executed agreement. Each invoice shall include all task orders 
authorized, a summary of the total amount authorized , the total amount invoiced and 
appropriate project schedules. 

10 of 15 



16-108 Exhibit A 

General Engineering Services Scope of Services 
Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering 

PIC No. 102554 

Authorization to Proceed - Type I Task Order 

Consultant Name and Address 

Re: Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering 
General Engineering Services Agreement 
PID No. 
Agreement No. 
Task Order Number (FIPS Code) - (Number) 

Dear Consultant: 

Effective this date you are hereby authorized to proceed with the subject task order. 

Project Identification 

a. Bridge List 
b. Tasks required on each bridge 

Services Requested 

(Detailed description of services required .) 

Documents Furnished by the Agency (attached) 

Additional Scope of Services Notes 

Task Order Completion Time 

_ days from Notice to Proceed. 

Prime Compensation 

The State agrees to compensate the CONSULTANT for the performance of the task order specified in 
accordance with Agreement No. , as follows: 

Actual costs plus a net fee. The Maximum Prime Compensation shall not exceed ---::_,-- ($ ). 
The net fee shall be calculated as 11 % of actual cost (labor + overhead + direct non-salary 
expenses). Subconsultant net fees shall be calculated in the same manner but the prime 
CONSULTANT shall not earn net fees on subconsultant costs . 

11 oft5 



16-108 Exhibit A 

General Engineering Services Scope of Services 
Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering 

PIO No. 102554 

Please address your written acknowledgment of this communication to: 

Respectfully, 

Omar Abu-Hajar 

Omar.Abu-Hajar@dot.ohio .gov 

Office of Structural Engineering 
Ohio Department of Transportation 
1980 West Broad Street 
3rd Floor - Mail Stop 5180 
Columbus, OH 43223-1102 

cc: Tim Keller, file 

12 of 15 




